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The activity, which is the subject of  this presentation, has been financed  in part 

with federal funds from the Department of  the Interior, administered by the 

Illinois Department of  Natural Resources.  However, the contents and opinions 

do not necessarily reflect the views or policies of  the Department of  the Interior 

or the Illinois Department of  Natural Resources, nor does the mention of  trade 

names or commercial products constitute endorsement or recommendation by the 

Department of  the Interior or the Illinois Department of  Natural Resources. 

This public presentation is part of  a thematic study of  African American life in 

Springfield initiated by the City of  Springfield’s Historic Sites Commission, and  

administered by the City of  Springfield’s Office of  Planning and Economic 

Development, 800 E. Monroe, Springfield, IL 62701.   



Fever River Research: About Us 

Fever River Research (Springfield, Illinois) is a full service Cultural 

Resource Management (CRM) firm that has been doing CRM work in 

Illinois for over 35 years.  

 

Our firm has completed multiple projects in Springfield over the years, 

including:  architectural surveys of  the Enos Park, West Side Capitol, 

and Aristocracy Hill neighborhoods;  IL-HAER documentation of  

CWLP’s Lakeside Generating Station; and  archaeological 

investigations within the Lincoln Home Neighborhood (for the 

National Park Service), the Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library and 

Museum (State of  Illinois), and on-going investigations for the 

Springfield Railroad Improvements project (City of  Springfield).  

Our Offices on Cook Street 



 

 

 Current Project Area 

The current project area is 

bordered on the west by 10th 

Street, on the east by 19th and 

Wirt Streets, on the south by 

South Grand Avenue and Brown 

Street, and on the north by 

Madison Street and Clear Lake 

Avenue.  This entails a very large 

area (over 500 acres in size) with 

over 1,300 primary buildings.   



Previous Architectural Survey Work in Springfield 



National Register of Historic Places 

Eligibility to the National Register is based on four broad criteria that are defined by the National Park 

Service and used to guide the evaluation process (36CFR60.4 Criteria for Evaluation)..  These 

criteria state that: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

a) that are associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the 

broad patterns of  our history [Social History]; or 

 

b) that are associated with the lives of  persons significant to our past [People]; or 

 

c) that embody the distinctive characteristics of  a type, period, or method of  

construction or that represent the work of  a master, or that possess high artistic 

values, or that represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose components 

may lack individual distinction [Architecture]; or  

 

d) that have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or 

history [Archaeology]. 

 

The quality of  significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, and culture is present in 

districts, sites, buildings, structures, and objects that possess integrity of  location, design, setting, 

materials, workmanship, feeling, and association, and 



National Register Criteria emphasizes the people, places, and events significant in the African 

American experience in Springfield.  The following discussion presents a few examples of  the 

properties associated with these criteria, and we invite the audience to help us identify lesser 

known examples in our community—and tangible connections to these people and events.    

 

1) People 

 

 

 

 

 

2) Places 

 

 

 

 

 

3) Events 



Context 
 
Developing a historical context is a key component to a developing a National Register of  

Historic Places thematic study, and in assessing the National Register eligibility of  individual 

properties. 

 

All context statements place the historic property in an historical framework, identifying the 

relevant aspects of  the historic property that determine its significance.  As such, as historic 

context statements have three parameters, that include: 

1) Theme:  African American Life  [Sub-themes include home 

life, work, recreation, religion, etc.] 

 

2) Time Frame:  Initial Settlement to 50-year cut-off  of  the 

National Register of  Historic Places (Circa 1820-1969) 

 

3) Location:  Springfield, Illinois  



Sources of  Information 

During the course of  this project, we drew on a wide range of  resources to develop 

the historic context, as well as to identify potentially significant individual properties.   

Some of  these sources included the following:  

1) Historic plats, atlases, and/or maps 

 

2) Public Records 

 

3) Historic Newspapers 

 

4) Published Histories 

 

5) Historic Photographic Collections 

 

6) Building Survey/Physical Landscape 

 

7) Oral Informants 



One of  the earliest maps of  Springfield, published during the middle 1850s (Hall 1855).  The 

Central East Neighborhood project area has been outlined in red.  Washington, Eleventh, and Cook 

Streets were significant early transportation routes at the time.  Rail lines run down Third and Tenth 

Streets by this date. 



Location of  the Central East Neighborhood, as depicted on the 1867 Bird’s Eye View of  Springfield 

(Ruger 1867).  By this date, the north end of  the project area had expanded significantly, extending to 

the eastern boundaries of  the neighborhood.  Additionally, the Eleventh Street thoroughfare had 

developed dramatically, extending south to South Grand Avenue.  A large section of  the southeast 

quadrant of  the project area, and to a lesser extent the northeast quadrant, remained undeveloped at 

this date.  



Besides the 1867 Bird’s Eye View of  Springfield, this circa 1873 view is also of  great interest.  

Depicted here is Springfield’s East Side at that time.    

The red line depicts the western boundary (at Tenth Street), and the northern 

boundary (at Madison Avenue) of  the current survey area. 



Federal census records document the City’s population with a house-by-house, street-by-street 

inventory of  the tally of  its inhabitants.  These records document the ethnic diversity of  

Springfield every ten years, and provide detailed information as to the various ethnic enclaves in 

the city, and the dynamics of  these families and households. 

Copy of  the 1860 census 

listing black “washerwomen”  

residing along 8th Street, north 

of  the incipient Washington 

Street Levee district. 



Sanborn maps of  Springfield are 

available for the years 1886, 1890, 1896, 

1917, 1950, and 1972.  These maps are 

an invaluable resource in understanding 

the built environment in the city and its 

change through time.   

Although Sanborn maps typically do not identify the 

race of  the occupants of  the houses shown, in some 

instances they note the presence of  black businesses 

and other race-related details.  This detail from the 

1896 Sanborn map illustrates a row houses on the 

300 block of  North Tenth Street labelled “Negro 

Shanties.”  Most of  these homes were destroyed by 

fire in the 1908 race riots. 



City directories, which are available for Springfield from the 1850s onward, provide information 

as to head of  households, their occupation, and place of  residence.  They also include business 

listings.  Unfortunately, less affluent and/or skilled individuals often were not documented in 

earlier directories.  City directories published prior to 1930 distinguish between white and black 

residents, as seen below. 

Copy of  a page from the 1891 

city directory illustrating names 

of  house occupants  along 100 

block of  Madison Street.  The 

“(col’d)” accompanying many of  

the names is in reference to their 

skin color  (“Colored”).  

Directories from other years 

indicate this with a “(c).” 

   



One of  the more interesting city directories is that published in 1876 at the time of  the country’s 

centennial celebration.  This directory included the seven-page Directory of  the Colored People of  

Springfield.    



Another directory of great interest to this project is entitled  Directory of Sangamon County’s Colored Citizens, 

and was published approximately 50 years after publication of the earlier directory.  This entire 

directory, which was published in circa 1926, was dedicated solely to the African American citizens of 

Springfield.   It is an invaluable source for researching Springfield’s black community in the early 

decades of the twentieth century.   



Casey’s A History of the Negro in Sangamon County (ca. 1926) presented the portraits of the black firemen 

who operated Engine House No. 5 (1310 East Adams St.) and noted that “the people of Springfield 

are justly proud of their colored fire department whose record for efficiency and faithful service has 

been amply attested.  Their services have been of great value to the city, and moreover, by their lives 

and conduct they have reflected credit on the people whom they so worthily represent.”    

 

Lawrence Brandon, 707 South 18th St. 

John Foreman, 1308 E. Carpenter St. 

Harry Neal,  916 E. Cass St. 

John Allen, 1417½ E. Capitol Ave. 

Henry Alexander, 1609 S. 14th St. 

John Farmer, not listed in the directory 



Captain Foreman’s house, in circa 1926, was located at 1308 East Carpenter Street.  Unfortunately, 

today the property is a vacant lot sandwiched between two contemporary vernacular working-

man’s houses.  It appears that the residences of  the other five black firemen have suffered a similar 

fate, with only the Alexander house as potentially surviving to the present day. 

 



Published histories add 

significantly to our understanding 

of  the African American 

experience in Springfield.   One 

of  the first sources to speak 

directly to the contribution of  the 

African American residents of  

Springfield was the History of  

Sangamon County, Illinois, which was 

published in 1881 (Inter-State 

Publishing Company).   

 

This source published a nine-page 

section entitled “The Colored 

People of  Springfield”, which 

highlighted the lives of  22 

Springfield residents.     



In 1912, Springfield resident Thomas Thompson 

(pictured below), in an effort to highlight the efforts of  

“the colored professional and business men and 

women, who are striving onward”  published his 

Pictorial Souvenir.   



James Osby was an early, and successful, 

real estate broker in Springfield (Thompson 

1912).  In 1912, Osby was living in this two-

story frame house at 200 W. Elliott Street.  

Many of  the residences once associated with individuals identified in Thompson’s Pictorial Souvenir 

have been identified.  More will be illustrated later in the presentation. 



We would be amiss if  we did not acknowledge the significant historical research on this topic 

conducted by local attorney and historian Richard Hart, who has contributed significantly to our 

understanding of  the contribution of  African Americans to early Springfield.   

Reverends Brown and Trevan 

with Old Bob in front of  

Abraham Lincoln’s Home,   

May 1865. 



Many published sources await further research, and promise to offer a wide range of new 

information.  One avenue worthy of pursuit is the role of Springfield’s Black service men and 

women in the military—such as those who served in World War I.   

 

 

Top Left: Members of Company I, 370th Infantry, 93rd Division, taken after parade during the demonstration in their honor upon their 

return to Springfield (Duff 1920:1104). Middle Bottom: First contingent of “colored” registrants to be called from Sangamon 

County for military service.  These men are Wordie Murrell, Julius Walker, Otto Morrison, Oakland Florville, Celcus Bailey, 

and Samuel Nelson.  Right:  One of multiple pages of World War I servicemen of color (Duff 1920:1088-89). 

 



Newspapers contain a wealth of  information 

pertaining to the everyday life of  early Springfield 

inhabitants—whether white or black.  These 

published accounts document the passage of  major 

events (births, marriages, deaths) and are often 

couched in period language.   

Obituary of  Joseph Faro, 

October 16, 1878 



No single event is probably more significant in Springfield’s racial history than that of the August 

1908 Race Riot.  Newspapers give us great detail as to what transpired, and the social climate of 

the day, from both a white… 



…and black perspective.  In late October 1897, A.V. Broady began publishing the Illinois Record, a 

weekly newspaper dedicated to the needs of  Springfield’s African American community.  Of  special 

interest are the sections “City News in Brief ” and “Church Notes,” both of  which contain a wealth 

of  local gossip and notes about happenings around town.   Springfield’s Black Press represents an 

early, untapped resource to study. 



The July 21, 1918 issue of  the Illinois State Journal  announced the formation of  the Centennial Co-

Operative Educational  Congress, which was in conjunction with the State’s Centennial Celebration.  

The Congress exposition was to begin on September 22nd of  that year, and the newspaper included 

three  pages highlighting the achievements of  Springfield’s African American community. 

 

Can anyone tell me the significance of  September 22nd?   

 



Newspapers also reported on social events involving 

the black community.  Emancipation Day 

(September 22) was a major social event, celebrated 

annually with a large festival for many years.  The 

article shown here is from 1878.  Within recent years, 

the current Juneteenth celebration seems to have 

supplanted Emancipation Day activities. 



View of  “beautiful modified bungalow” constructed for Mr. and Mrs. Ed Williams “on a nine acre 

garden tract between Ash and Taylor streets on Cornell avenue” (Illinois State Journal, 21 July 1918).  

Unfortunately, this house is no longer extant. 



Another rather unique published source relevant to this study was the series of yearly books known as 

the “Geen Book.”  The Negro Motorist Green-Book was first published in 1936, as a guide for the black 

tourist to safely maneuver New York City in the era of Jim Crow.  It was such a success, that the 

following year the Green Book was expanded to cover much of the United States.  It continued as a 

yearly guide through the middle 1960s, being discontinued after the passage of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964.   



Details of Springfield listings in the 1939 issue of the Negro Motorist’s Green Book… 



The Hotel Brown (aka Dudley Hotel) was one of  

the earlier and more significant properties in 

Springfield catering to the “Negro Motorist.”  It 

was located at the intersection of  Eleventh and 

Adams Streets—in essence the far eastern 

extension of  the Levee District.   It was opened in 

1914; severely damaged by fire in 1957, and 

demolished in late 1960 (SVC).  



Over the years, 22 properties were listed in the Negro Motorist’s Green Book for Springfield—the 

majority of  which had been located within the Central East Neighborhood.  At the beginning of  

our research (August 2017), fourteen of  these 22 buildings were known to have been demolished… 



Our research indicated that only two of the former “tourist houses” advertised in the Negro Motorists 

Green Book located within the Central East Neighborhood.  

 

Left:  1616 East Jackson Street, operated by H. Robbins.   

Right: 1501 East Jackson Street, operated by B. Eskridge. 



Historic Photographic collections of  families, work, and buildings.  Many of  the photographs 

used in this presentation are from the Sangamon Valley Collection at the Lincoln Library.   

Additionally, the Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library and Museum has a substantial photographic 

collection of  Springfield images.  Eddie Winfred “Doc” Helm was the chief  photographer for the 

Illinois Secretary of  State, and he recorded many images of  African American life in Springfield from 

the 1940s through the 1990s (some of  which are in the ALPLM; others currently on display at the 

AAHM).       

Helm Residence, 1128 S. Pasfield St. Early 1950s Christmas Card from the Helms 



Photographs of East Madison 

Street, and National Guard in 

Springfield (August 1908; SVC).   



“Reading the Landscape.”  Extant buildings also give us insights into the lifeways of  the early 

inhabitants of  a neighborhood.  We look closely at the types of  buildings in a project area, and what 

they can tell us about the past history of  that neighborhood.  Of  particular interest is the variety of  

vernacular housing present.  

Top Left:  Residence of  Frank Hicklin, located at 912 N. Fourteenth 

Street.  Hicklin was first black elected official in the City of  Springfield.  

This T-shaped, one-story frame cottage was the most common house 

form in the project area.  

 

Right:  Images of  housing occupied by black residents in Springfield’s 

Central East Neighborhood in 1961 (Inman Publishing Company 1961).  

Many of  the twenty-one houses illustrated in this booklet were traditional 

single-story, T-/L-cottages.  



The African American Experience, Springfield, Illinois 

 
 Blacks in Pre-Emancipation Springfield, 1818-1865  

 

 Springfield and the Immediate Post War Years, 1865-1877  

 

 Springfield and the Early Years of  Jim Crow, 1877-1908 

 

 The Great Springfield Race War, August 1908 

 

 Springfield and the Early Civil Rights Movement, 1909-1945 

 

 Springfield’s Post-War Prosperity and the Civil Rights Movement (1946-1969) 



The full report, entitled National Register of Historic Places Thematic Survey of 
Springfield’s African-American Community (as well as a copy of this PowerPoint 

presentation) is available online on our webpage: IllinoisArchaeology.com. 

 



Two ladies enjoying 

Washington Park, 1903 

Circa 1910 image 

of  Amanda 

Anderson, 

widow of  miner 

Peter Anderson 

who was killed in 

a mining accident 

in 1899. 

Northwest 

Springfield 

residents 

Omer 

Donaldson 

(left) and 

Albert Harris 

(right) pose 

for a picture 

during early 

years of  

twentieth 

century. 

Ultimately, the project was about Springfield 

residents of  color at home, work, and play… 

Unidentified 

construction 

workers paving 

Lawrence Street, 

post 1905. 



… and historic properties once associated with those life experiences.  Those 

historic properties—and the life experiences associated with them—have been 

organized around several basic themes. 

1. Civic Engagement, Community, and/or Institutional 

Buildings 

 

2. Work-Related and/or Commercial Buildings 

 

3. Churches 

 

4. Housing 
 



Civic, Community, and/or 

Institutional Buildings 



A wide variety of  civic organizations have 

played an important social role in the black 

community, as illustrated by this 1926 

directory listing.  Identifying buildings 

associated with these lodges would be of  

interest to the thematic study.  



View of  the Colored Masonic Temple, Springfield, Illinois 

(Thompson 1912:n.p.).  This building, which was 

constructed between 1896 and 1906, was located at 119 

North Eighth Street, and demolished as part of  the middle 

1960s urban renewal program  By circa 1904, Mr. Rhoden 

was operating his undertaking business from this location.  

Mr. William Neal (Peggy Neal Senor’s grandfather) in his 

Masonic regalia, circa 1892-1900.  Neal was a barber with a 

shop in the 600 block of  East Washington Street.  He was 

elected “Worshipful Master” to the Masons Central Lodge 

No. 3 in December 1892 (ISJ, 8 December 1892), chaplain 

of  the Colored Masons in 1894 (ISJ, 14 October 1894), and 

“Eminent Commander of  the Ivanhoe Commandery No. 3, 

Knights Templar in November 1897 (ISJ, 27 November 

1897). 



One of  the more significant buildings associated with 

this theme is the Lincoln Colored Home, which is located at 

427 South Street.  It currently is listed individually on 

the National Register of  Historic Places.  The home was 

established by Eva Monroe in 1898, with the existing 

structure being constructed in 1904.  An outgrowth of  

Monroe’s work was the establishment of  the Springfield 

Colored Women’s Club—an organization of  black 

women dedicated to social reform.   

The Monroe Sisters.  Eva C. Monroe is circled in red.   



In 1899, Eva Monroe (founder of  the Lincoln Colored Home) and group of  fellow Springfield 

women, established the Springfield Colored Women’s Club, which crusaded for a variety of  philanthropic 

causes in Springfield.  

ISJ 24 December 1938  

ISJ  24 April 1939 

Casey Directory, 

ca. 1926 Eva Monroe, ca. 1900 



Another early view 

of  the Lincoln Colored 

Home, with residents 

standing out front for 

a picture. 



One of  the most cited examples of  significant buildings associated with the African American 

experience in Springfield is the former Engine House No. 5 at  1310 East Adams Street.  An all-

black crew manned this station, and later it became home to the local African-American Masonic 

lodge.  By the early 1970s, this building was owned by the Springfield Masons.   



We should not underestimate the significance of  the current Firehouse No. 5, located at the 

northwest corner of  Clay Street and Martin Luther King Drive (1731 East Clay), which was 

built in 1958. 



The Judge Wycliff  Taylor House at the 

corner of  Twelfth and Cass Streets is also 

one of  the more cited examples for 

Springfield.  Built in 1857 as a private 

residence, the home later housed the 

Ambidexter Industrial and Normal 
Institute, a school for black youth that 

taught arts and sciences, domestic skills, 

and period trades. 



Also of  great significance 

to the community is the 

Boy’s and Girls Club of  
Central Illinois which is 

located at 300 South 

Fifteenth Street.  This 

facility was constructed in 

1960.  The club itself  was 

organized in 1956.   

Ca. 1968 



Schools are another significant form of  institutional buildings.      

 

Former African School of  Springfield, once located 

at 319 North Fifteenth Street.  This picture was 

taken in June 1940 in anticipation of  demolition for 

construction of  the Hay Homes.  At the time, the 

building was being used as the home of  Mrs. Edna 

Dorsey, who was being relocated due to the urban 

renewal project (Illinois State Journal, 28 June 1940 

The original Palmer School was named in honor 

of  Governor John A. Palmer, who supported the 

desegregation of  Illinois schools (Illinois State 

Register 1898).  



The Lincoln School.  A public school has occupied this location since the late 1850s, and there 

have been several generations of  schools here.  The ground for the existing school building was 

broke in October 1912 (ISR, 11 October 1912).     



But clearly, one of  the more significant schools in Springfield relevant to this thematic study is Feitshan’s 
School.  The Feitshans School was constructed sometime between 1886 and 1898 as a grade school, and named 

after Fredrick Feitshans, “a longtime teacher and administrator to Springfield public schools in the late 19th 

century” who died in 1886.  In 1898, the school was “enlarged.”  In 1920, the school was destroyed by fire, 

rebuilt in 1921, and subsequently converted to a high school in the fall of  1929.  This, the second high school in 

the City, quickly thereafter became known as the city’s “black high school.”  Feitshans High School closed after 

the 1966-67 school year with consolidation of  Springfield’s Southeast School District and construction of  the 

new Southeast High School.  It was not until 1974-76 that the Springfield School District was fully desegregated.  

Recently Feitshans reopened and presently serves as an elementary school. 



Lincoln Library’s South Branch.  The public library opened a branch facility at 

this location on January 10, 1927.  The branch library closed in 1983.  The building 

later was home to the Den Chili Parlor, and now Clay’s Popeye’s Barbeque.   
  



Commercial Buildings 



Unfortunately, the heart of Springfield’s Black historic commercial and social district—located along 

Washington Street between Seventh and Ninth Streets, and known as the Levee—was demolished during 

“urban renewal” efforts beginning in the 1960s.   

 

Julia’s Blue Moon Club, 1945 Night Life on Washington Street, in the Levee, 1942 



Thompson’s Pictorial Souvenir from 1912 is a excellent source regarding some of these early 

Black entrepreneurs, and the buildings associated with them. 

 

J. E. Thompson’s Grocery, located 

at 1101 E. Washington Street.. 

 

Mrs. M. A. Tucker’s commercial establishment at 

109 S. Eleventh Street (south of  the Enterprise 

Bank).  Mrs. Tucker operated a millinery, restaurant, 

boarding house, and an ice cream parlor from this 

location.    



W. W. White Funeral Home, a black-owned business at 1304 East Monroe Street.  The funeral home was 

established in 1946, as a result of the remodeling of an older apartment building.  The 1896 Sanborn map indicates 

the presence of a frame, single-family residence at this location.  By 1917, a large brick apartment building—labelled 

as a “flat” and addressed as 1304-1306 East Monroe Street—was present at this location, having replaced an earlier 

house.  By 1946, the apartment building had been remodeled into a modern funeral home for W. W. White, licensed 

embalmer and funeral director.  The business had a large, formal open house in late November 1946 (ISJ, 17 

November 1946). White also added a porte-cochere along the west side of the building.  The 1952 Sanborn map 

indicates these changes and notes the building’s occupancy by an “undertaker.”  The W. W. White Memorial Home 

is still in business at this address (as of 8/2018).   
 

 

 

 



Lee Medical Building (top; corner of  Jackson and Thirteen 

Streets, built in 1958) and Lee residence (bottom; 920 South 

Wheeler Avenue). 
Dr. Edwin Lee 

Dr. Ewin Lee and the Lee Medical Building.  Dr. Lee was admitted to the Sangamon County Medical Society in 

1949 and practiced medicine in Springfield until within months of  his death 1993.  His office at the corner of  

Jackson and Thirteen Streets, built in 1958, was the first medical office building in Springfield owned by black 

physicians.  



Sam’s Market.  This commercial building, constructed in 1923 at 1100 South Martin Luther King Drive, was 

long home to Sam’s Market (circa 1933-1972), one of the many corner stores that once serviced the Central East 

Neighborhood—few of which remain today.  In 1973, Benson Jones, owner of Popeye’s BBQ, relocated his 

business here.  A Springfield favorite, Popeye’s operated from the building until circa 2000. 



Murrell Residence and Laundry.  The 1918 Centennial Celebration edition of the local newspaper highlighted the 

Murrell Hand Laundry and its proprietress (Illinois State Journal, 21 July 1918).   Located at 1240  West Jefferson 

Street, on the west side of Springfield, these buildings are not  located within the Central East Neighborhood.  

Nonetheless, they represent remnants of a significant early black owned and operated business in Springfield 



Churches 



Churches are places of  special note that have played a significant role in the African American 

community.   This is a directory of  the churches serving the community in circa 1926 (Casey 1926).   



One of  the more prominent churches associated with the African American community in Springfield was the 

Zion Baptist Church (1601 E Laurel St.).  Historic images are from Casey’s circa 1926 Directory. 



Holy Trinity Church was another significant church associated with the early African American community.  It 

was organized in March 1888 as the Evangelical Lutheran Church of the Holy Trinity with Professor H. 

Wyneken as pastor.  Located on north Fifteenth Street, the church was dedicated on February 24, 1889 

(Concordia Publishing House 1914).   The church has been renovated twice since its original construction (in 

1923 and 1930).  The parsonage was constructed in 1900 by seminary students.  Constructed for a black 

congregation, it is the oldest surviving church in the greater Central East Neighborhood.  

 



St. John’s AME Church at 1529 East Capitol Avenue.  This congregation was founded in 1876.  The existing 

church building was constructed in 1940.  St. John’s had previously been located at Fourteenth and Mason 

Streets, but had to relocate due to the construction of the John Hay Homes.  The cornerstone for the existing 

church was laid on October 20, 1940, and the building opened for services on December 29 of that same year 

(ISJ, 20 October 1940, 29 December 1940). 

 

 



Union Baptist Church.  This congregation was 

founded in 1871.  The original church was located on 

the northwest corner of  Mason and Twelfth streets.  

The congregation remained at their original location 

until forced to relocate in 1940 due to the construction 

of  the John Hay Homes.  The first addition onto the 

building was the “Education Building,” which was built 

in 1971.   



Left:  A 1940s view of  the St. Paul African Methodist Church once located at 620-622 East 

Mason Street.  A 1930s Sunday School class out in front of  the church on a cold day (bottom 

right).  The church is now located at 1116 South Sixteenth Street (top right).   



Pleasant Grove Baptist Church was established in 1895 when the congregation split from the Zion Baptist 

Church, in order to establish a place of  worship closer to their neighborhood of  “Goose Prairie.”  Their new 

church was constructed at 916 South 18th St (now Martin Luther King Jr. Drive).   

Circa 1920s 



Pentecostal Tabernacle Church of  God in Christ.  The 

church was constructed as Grace Methodist Episcopal 

Church, a black congregation organized in 1898.   The 

congregation relocated to this address from a preexisting 

church in 1900.  The present church attained its current 

configuration—either by being completely rebuilt, or 

remodeled with addition of  entrance vestibule and removal 

of  potential bell tower—in 1925.  

St. Paul’s A.M.E. Church.  The original church at this 

location was the Stuart Street Christian Church, which was 

constructed in 1905 (ISJ, 9 September 1905).  In 1940-41, 

the congregation drastically enlarged the church and 

eliminated the corner tower originally present (converting 

it into a dormer).  This congregation was organized in 

1843, but it was not until 1956 that they purchased the 

former Stuart Street Christian Church and relocated.  This 

is the second-oldest black church in Springfield. 



St. Luke’s Episcopal Church.   This church was 

built about 1900.  The original white congregation 

disbanded after a few years, and  the diocese 

subsequently donated the church to a black 

congregation in 1908.  The congregation remained 

predominately black until the middle 1960s, after 

which is became more racially mixed.   

Seventh Day Adventist Church..  The first black 

Seventh Day Adventist congregation  was organized in 

Springfield in 1904, and built the present church in 1911.  

Reverend L. W. Brown served as the first pastor.  The 

church was remodeled in 1970. 



Greater All Nation’s Tabernacle.  The 

original portion of  this church was 

constructed in 1944, and added onto in 1970. 

The Prayer Wheel Church of  God in Christ 
was organized in 1953 (ISJ, 27 October 1961).  

In March 1959, the congregation was granted a 

building permit for “repair” (valued at $1,000) 

of  a church building at the 1731 East Kansas 

Street (ISJ, 24 March 1959).  More than simple 

repairs appear to have been undertaken. 



Housing 



Housing associated with African American is often characterized early twentieth century accounts 

as being low quality and in poor condition. Left:  Illustration of  deteriorated housing from the 

1914 Springfield Survey depicting housing conditions presumably in, or close to, the city’s Badlands 

(Schneider 1915).  Bottom:  “Negro Dwelling “in Springfield (Ihler 1914:16). 



This dwelling, located at 1530 East Capitol Avenue, was built for John Doyle in circa 1902-04.  

Later, it was the home of  Thomas R. Thompson from circa 1923 through 1927. Thompson was a 

successful insurance agent (offices on the Levee) for many years, and an accomplished photographer 

who published Pictorial Souvenir  in 1912.  By the 1920s, he apparently was working in a civil servant 

position at the “State House.”  After his death in 1927, the Springfield Urban League and the 

Douglas Community Center shared office space in this house for a short time beginning in 1928, 

and lasting through 1932.    



A. Morris Williams, a prominent African-American lawyer and businessman in Springfield, resided in this modest 

one-story, frame house at 1106 South Walnut Avenue from around 1918 until his death in 1936.  Williams was one 

of the partners responsible for the construction of the Hotel Brown (later Hotel Dudley), and instrumental in filing 

retribution claims against the City of Springfield after the August 1908 riots.  Williams biography was included in 

both Thompson’s 1912 Pictorial Souvenir, as well as Casey’s 1926 Directory of Sangamon County’s Colored Citizens 

 

1912 1926 



Doctor Noel Ford had only recently 

moved to Springfield at the time of   the 

publication of  Thompson’s Pictorial 

Souvenir in 1912.  Ford occupied this 

frame house at 1611 East Jackson Street 

in that year with his wife Alice.  By 

1934, the home was apparently 

occupied by the Orville Artis family. 



Family gathering at 1611 East Jackson Street after the funeral of  Thomas Artis—patriarch of  the Artis family. 

Front and center in this image is Orville H. Artis (son of  Thomas), and his wife Minnie.  Thomas Artis was a 

resident of  Lincoln, but four of  his children (Orville, Oney, Logan, and Vera) lived in Springfield.  Orville was living 

in Springfield by early 1918 (ISJ, 20 March 1918), and became a licensed embalmer in July 1920 (ISR, 30 July 1920).  

By 1931, Orville and his family were living at 1611 East Jackson Street (ISJ, 23 October 1931).  By the late 1930s, 

Orville was no longer an embalmer and had pursued a variety of  other jobs (linoleum layer, janitor).  Both Mr. and 

Mrs. Orville Artis were involved in a variety of  church and civic organizations (East End Neighbors Club; Knights 

of  Pythias and Court of  Calanthe; Zion Baptist Church; United Church Women of  Springfield; Union Baptist 

Church).  Orville Artis died in August 1976 (ISJR, 27 August 1976).  The family resided at 1611 East Jackson Street, 

Springfield—the same home once occupied by Dr. Noel Ford, for only a short time, having relocated by 1937. 



Residence of  Alexander Bender, located at 1727 East Carpenter Street (Illinois 

State Journal, 21 July 1918).  Bender was a carriage and automobile painter.  This 

house was probably built between 1903 and 1907.  Henry Zake, a farmer in 

Clear Lake Township, purchased the lot the house stands on in June 1903 from 

a man named William M. Brewer. This address first appears in the 1908 city 

directory.  It also first appears in the newspaper database in 1907.  The house 

was apparently built by Zake as a rental property in 1908.  Alexander Bender 

was listed as a resident at this address in the 1917 and 1918 city directories.  At 

that time, Bender’s  paint shop was located on Cook Street, between Second 

and Third Streets. 

 



Residence of George Bates, located at 1032 South Spring Street (ISJ, 21 July 1918).  Bates 

apparently constructed this two-story, eight-room, frame residence in late 1916 at an estimated 

cost of $2,000 (ISJ, 13 August 1916).  Bates’ obituary (ISJ, March 2, 1944) reports that he was 

still living at this location at the time of his death, and that he had been at the same address the 

past 50 years.  The city directories confirm this, as Bates was first listed at this address in 1896.  

By 1918, Bates worked as a civil servant in the Illinois State House, and had a son serving in the 

U.S. Army in France (World War I). 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



Residence of Frank Burns, 1213 S. Fourteenth Street (ISJ, 21 July 1918).   This 

house was probably built between 1908 and 1909.  Edward R. Ives is first listed 

in the city directory at this address in 1909.  Ives offered the house and 

household goods for sale in April 1916.  His newspaper advertisement described 

the place as an “8 room modern house” (ISR, April 1, 1916).  Burns bought the 

house and land in August 1916  (ISR, 4 August 1916).  Burns, who was last 

listed in the house in 1941, was one of the original organizers of Company H, 

Eighth Regiment, Illinois National Guard.  Early in life, he had worked as a 

railroad engineer and “expert” machinist, but due to the “color line” and 

inability to advance in that career path, he became the head waiter at the Leland 

Hotel (ISJ, 21 July 1918). 

 



Residence of J. Harold White, located at 1905 East Jackson Street (ISJ, 21 July 1918).  White 

worked alongside his father for many years in the grocery business, at the Enterprise Savings 

Bank, and later as a civil servant at the State Capital.  



Top:  Executive Board of the Centennial Co-

operative Educational Congress Committee (ISJ, 21 

July 1918).   

 

Bottom:  Residence of Frank Hicklin, located at 912 

N. Fourteenth Street.  Hicklin was vice-president of 

the committee, and presumably was one of the 

individuals sitting front and center in the above 

picture.   

 
Frank B. Hicklin was the son of  Springfield resident 

Hezkiah Hicklin (1835-1904), who was active in 

statewide race issues, and was a delegate at the State 

Convention of  Colored Men, held at Galesburg in 

October 1867.  He was also the first black to hold 

public office in Sangamon County, having been 

elected to serve on the Sangamon County Board of  

Supervisors.   

 

Frank Hicklin (1864-1921), was elected as city 

alderman from the First Ward in 1895.  Frank served 

one term, 1895-1897, and was the first African 

American city council member.   Frank B. Hicklin 

resided at this located from 1900 until his death in July 

1921.  Frank was on the executive committee of  the 

Centennial Co-Operative Educational Congress (ISJ; 

21 July 1918). 



Many young African-American tradesmen went into business for themselves, often working 

exclusively for fellow African-American clients during the Jim Crow era.  One such tradesman was the 

carpenter/builder Oscar Birdsong who came to Springfield, from Pulaski County in southern Illinois, 

in 1903.   Presumably, the house identified with him in the 1926 directory at 823 S. Fifteenth Street 

(Casey 1926) was built by him, and represents the “beautiful home” described in his 1918 biography 

(ISJ, 21 July 1918). 

 



Former home of  Charles S. Gibbs at 816 South Fifteenth Street.  Gibbs was an attorney and 

prominent civic leader in Springfield’s African American community, heavily involved with local, 

state, and even national issues associated with improving living conditions of  his fellow citizens, and 

race relations.   His wife Mary was equally active, serving for a time as President of  the Springfield 

Colored Women’s Club.  In 1912, Gibbs was living at 1404 E. Reynolds Street (which is no longer 

extant).  By circa 1921, he had relocated to a modest brick house at 816 S. Fifteenth Street, in which 

he lived for many years (Casey 1926).  This house, which appears to have been constructed by 1917 

(albeit potentially having been clad with brick at a later date?), was the Gibbs residence from 1921 

until his death in 1927. 



Elmer Lee Rogers, was the founder and editor of two local black newspapers, The  Forum (1904-

1927) and the Illinois  Conservator (1905-1950).  Rogers resided at this location (905 S. 

Fourteenth Street) from circa 1915 through at least 1926.  He died in Springfield in 1957 (Camara 

2015). 



In August 1908, Dan Neal’s house (bottom left) 

was destroyed during the Springfield Race Riot.  

Casey’s 1926 Directory carried this short 

biography regarding Neal, and singled him out as 

“one of the few who showed great bravery and 

courage.” In 1926, Neal was living at 1408 E. 

Capitol Avenue (Casey 1926).   Neal died on 

March 4, 1927.   His widow was listed in the 1927 

city directory at this same location. 



Remember “Doc”  Helm, chief photographer for the Illinois Secretary of State?  Historic and 

present-day views of the Helm Residence at 1128 South Pasfield Street.  The home is located 

outside of the survey area. 



In reviewing the results of this initial study, what becomes very obvious with regard to this 

thematic study is the lack of historic properties associated with the early settlement of Springfield.  Few extant, 

above-ground resources from this time period have been located in Springfield. Research clearly 

has established the presence of the African American resident, and his/her significant contribution 

to the development of the City, but there is little above-ground connection to that story.   

 

ARCHAELOGY has the ability to fill in some of those gaps in this story. Although above-ground 

resources may not be present, we must not overlook the possibility of significant subsurface, or 

archaeological information being present in some of the more unexpected places—such as that 

uncovered as part of the current Springfield Rail Improvements Project…. 

 

 

 



…where the remains of seven houses were uncovered below an existing parking lot.  Five of these 

houses were destroyed by fire during the August 1908 Springfield Race Riots.  These remarkably 

well preserved house remains represent some of the only intact remains directly related to that 

horrific event.   

 

House A 

House B 



Artifacts from these archaeological investigations have great research and interpretive 

value, giving voice to the “voiceless” individuals directly impacted by that event. 

 

 

Left:  Burned ceramic table setting from House B. 

Right:  Bone cross recovered from House D, and potentially 

associated with rosary similar to one illustrated here. 



RECOMMENDATIONS:  This project was the first of a multi-phased study focused on 

African-American historic resources in Springfield.  Future research will focus on: 

 

1) Further identify significant city-wide resources through additional survey work;  

 

2) Recognize the significance to local history of the 37 properties currently identified;  

 

3) Pursue completion of a Multiple Property Nomination Form for the National Register of 

Historic Places highlighting properties identified by current and future surveys;  

 

4) Integrate results of this and future studies in various outreach and/or educational programs; 

 

5) Identify significant resources threatened with demolition and/or in need of immediate 

assistance (such as Engine House No. 5, the Lincoln Colored Home; and the Taylor 

Home). 

 

 

 



Questions or Comments? 

Floyd can be reached by phone (217-341-8138) or email (fmansberger@comcast.net). 

We encourage you to take a few minutes to think about the people, places, and events 

that have been significant in your life experiences in Springfield, and contact us to 

complete a survey form or two.    

Thank You. 

The research provides a significant historical context for current archaeological 

researching conducted on the site of  the 1908 Springfield Race Riot, lends itself  to a 

variety of  educational venues, and will contribute to the understanding of  our 

collective history.   


